
Steve Atkinson MA(Oxon) MBA FloD FRSA
Chief Executive

Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR
Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk

To: Members of the Planning Committee

Mr R Mayne (Chairman)
Mr JS Moore (Vice-Chairman)
Mr RG Allen
Mr JG Bannister
Mr CW Boothby
Mr DS Cope
Mrs WA Hall
Mrs L Hodgkins
Mr MS Hulbert

Mr KWP Lynch
Mr K Morrell
Mr LJP O'Shea
Mrs H Smith
Mr BE Sutton
Miss DM Taylor
Mr R Ward
Ms BM Witherford

Copy to all other Members of the Council

(other recipients for information)

Dear Councillor,

There will be a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE in the De Montfort Suite - Hub on 
TUESDAY, 21 APRIL 2015 at 6.30 pm and your attendance is required.

The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf.

Yours sincerely

Rebecca Owen
Democratic Services Officer

Date: 13 April 2015

Public Document Pack



Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR
Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE -  21 APRIL 2015

A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

2.  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2015.

3.  ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 

To be advised of any additional items of business which the Chairman decides by reason 
of special circumstances shall be taken as matters of urgency at this meeting.

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive verbally from Members any disclosures which they are required to make in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct or in pursuance of Section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992. This is in addition to the need for such 
disclosure to be also given when the relevant matter is reached on the agenda.

5.  QUESTIONS 

To hear any questions in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10.

6.  DECISIONS DELEGATED AT PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Deputy Chief Executive (Community Direction) to report progress on any decisions 
delegated at the previous meeting.

7.  TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 - APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED 
(Pages 5 - 50)

Schedule of planning applications attached.

8.  APPEALS PROGRESS (Pages 51 - 52)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Community Direction) attached.

9.  DELEGATED DECISIONS ISSUED (Pages 53 - 62)

Report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Community Direction) attached.

10.  ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES HAVE TO BE 
DEALT WITH AS MATTERS OF URGENCY 



-168 -

HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

31 MARCH 2015 AT 6.30 PM

PRESENT: Mr R Mayne - Chairman
Mr JS Moore – Vice-Chairman

Mr RG Allen, Mr JG Bannister, Mr CW Boothby, Mr DS Cope, Mrs WA Hall, 
Mrs L Hodgkins, Mr MS Hulbert, Mr KWP Lynch, Mr K Morrell, Mr LJP O'Shea, 
Mrs H Smith, Mr BE Sutton, Miss DM Taylor, Mr R Ward and Ms BM Witherford

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4.4 Councillor Mr MR Lay was also in 
attendance.

Officers in attendance: Simon Atha, Rebecca Owen, Michael Rice and Nic Thomas

444 MINUTES 

On the motion of Councillor Hodgkins, seconded by Councillor O’Shea, it was

RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2015 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

445 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No interests were declared at this stage.

446 DECISIONS DELEGATED AT PREVIOUS MEETING 

It was reported that all decisions had been issued.

447 TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 - APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED 

The Committee was presented with a schedule of planning applications and late items.

(a) 14/01205/OUT – Residential development for up to 80 dwellings, open space and 
associated works (outline – access only), land to the south west of Lutterworth 
Road, Burbage – Davidsons Homes

Notwithstanding the officer’s recommendation that the application be approved, 
members felt that the infrastructure in Burbage was not adequate to support 
further new properties in Burbage. It was MOVED by Councillor Moore and 
SECONDED by Councillor Lynch that the application be refused due to the 
proposed development not being sustainable due to the infrastructure being 
inadequate. Upon being put to the vote, the motion was CARRIED and it was

RESOLVED – the application be refused on grounds of sustainability, with 
the final wording of the reasons delegated to officers.

(b) 14/01274/OUT – Residential development of up to 49 dwellings (outline – 
access), Land at Beech Drive, Thornton – JH Hallam & Son Limited

Members expressed concern regarding the impact of the proposed development 
on residents due to the lack of infrastructure and the additional traffic 
exacerbating the existing issues.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



-169 -

Councillor Bannister left the meeting at 7.30pm.

It was MOVED by Councillor O’Shea and SECONDED by Councillor Boothby that 
the application be refused due to being outside of the settlement boundary, 
having an adverse impact on residents and being unsustainable due to the lack 
of infrastructure. Upon being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED and it was

RESOLVED – the application be refused on grounds of unsustainability, 
impact on residents and being outside of the settlement boundary.

(c) 15/00074/COU – Change of use from ground floor hot food takeaway (use class 
A5) to Bangladeshi meeting centre (use class D1) and alterations to front 
elevation (revised proposal), The Pantry, 102 Rugby Road, Hinckley – Mr Kamal 
Ullah

It was moved by Councillor Witherford, seconded by Councillor Lynch and

RESOLVED – the application be refused for the reasons contained in the 
officer’s report.

(d) 14/01258/FUL – Erection of one wind turbine up to 76 metres in hub height and 
up to 100 metres in tip height with associated infrastructure including access 
track, turbine foundations, crane hardstanding, substation, associated 
underground cabling and temporary meteorological mast, land at Little Markfield 
Farm, Forest Road, Markfield – Mrs Brenda Featherstone

It was moved by Councillor O’Shea, seconded by Councillor Boothby and

RESOLVED – the application be refused for the reasons contained in the 
officer’s report as amended in the late items.

(e) 14/00924/FUL – Erection of two storey “drive-through” restaurant with associated 
parking and landscaping, land west of Dodwells Road, Hinckley – Plesvale Ltd

Concern was expressed by members that the exit onto the highway was 
dangerous for cars, pedestrians and cyclists, the highway was already 
congested, there were pedestrian safety issues within the site due to vehicle 
movements, and the proposed development would impact upon neighbouring 
businesses. It was MOVED by Councillor Taylor and SECONDED by Councillor 
Lynch that the application be refused on grounds of highway safety and capacity 
and adverse impact on businesses. Upon being put to the vote the motion was 
CARRIED and it was

RESOLVED – the application be refused on grounds of impact on 
highway, pedestrian and cyclist safety due to the inadequate access and 
impact on congestion on the highway network. It was also refused on the 
grounds of detrimental impact on the safety, security and function of 
neighbouring businesses.

(f) 15/00014/FUL – Erection of two new dwellings including demolition of existing 
double garage and part of existing bungalow to create a new shared vehicular 
access, 61 Burbage Road, Burbage – Mrs Sheila Bennett

It was moved by Councillor Hall, seconded by Councillor Lynch and

RESOLVED – the application be refused for the reasons outlined in the 
officer’s report.

Page 2



-170 -

(g) 14/01084/FUL – Partial demolition of, and extensions and alterations to, an 
existing dwelling and erection of two new dwellings, alterations to access and 
erection of a new boundary wall, 20 Rookery Lane, Groby – Executors and 
Trustees of Cynthia Fogerty Deceased

Members expressed concern that, whilst there was potential for development on 
the site, the proposed dwelling to the rear would be overbearing due to its height 
and the level of the land in relation to the existing properties. Concerns were also 
raised about highway safety relating to the access and about the potential for the 
dwellings fronting Rookery Land appearing as a ‘terrace’. It was MOVED by 
Councillor O’Shea and SECONDED by Councillor Allen that the application be 
DEFERRED for further consideration of these matters and discussion with the 
applicant. Upon being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED and it was

RESOLVED – the application be deferred for further discussion in relation 
to the access, levels / scale and design of the proposed development.

(h) 15/00032/COU – Change of use of agricultural building for the storage of farm 
machinery and vehicles, Ivy House Farm, Hall Lane, Odstone – Mr David Alex 
Longwill

It was moved by Councillor Sutton, seconded by Councillor Lynch and

RESOLVED – the application be granted subject to the conditions 
contained in the officer’s report.

448 APPEAL DECISIONS 

Members received decision notices relating to recent appeals for 9 Hill Rise, Burbage, 
Land east of Groby Village Cemetery, Ratby Road, Groby and The Stables, Bagworth 
Road, Newbold Heath. It was moved by Councillor Allen, seconded by Councillor Morrell 
and

RESOLVED – the outcomes be noted.

449 APPEALS PROGRESS 

Members were updated on the progress of various appeals since the previous meeting. 
It was moved by Councillor Allen, seconded by Councillor Morrell and

RESOLVED – the report be noted.

450 DELEGATED DECISIONS ISSUED 

Members were provided with a list of delegated decisions taken. It was moved by 
Councillor Morrell, seconded by Councillor Allen and

RESOLVED – the report be noted.

(The Meeting closed at 9.29 pm)

CHAIRMAN

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

21 April 2015 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF CHIEF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT OFFICER 

 
ON APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION BY 

 
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
   
Background papers used in the preparation of these reports are filed in the 
relevant application files, unless otherwise stated  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



1 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA  -  21 April 2015  -  NUMERIC INDEX 
 
 
REF. NO. APPLICANT  SITE  ITEM PAGE 
 
14/00951/REM Curtis Hall Ltd Nailstone Colliery Wood Road 

Nailstone 
01   2 

 
14/01270/FUL Sun Farming UK Ltd Land South West Of Lindridge 

Farm Lindridge Lane Desford 
02  12 

 
14/00295/FUL Mr Darren Price Land East Of Heath Road 

Bagworth 
03  25 

 
 
  

Page 6



2 
 

Item: 
 

01 

Reference: 
 

14/00951/REM 

Applicant: 
 

Curtis Hall Ltd 

Location: 
 

Nailstone Colliery  Wood Road Nailstone 
 

Proposal: 
 

Approval of reserved matters (appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale) of outline planning permission 10/00851/EXT for the 
redevelopment of former colliery site to include storage and 
distribution uses (Class B8), small business units (Class B1 (C),B2 
and B8), a country park, landscaping open space and the formation of 
a new access (accompanied by an Environmental Statement) (cross 
boundary application with North West Leicestershire District Council) 

 
RECOMMENDATION:- Grant subject to conditions. 
 
Introduction:- 
 
This submission seeks the approval of the reserved matters for the: Redevelopment of the 
former colliery site to include storage and distribution uses (Class B8), small business units 
(Class B1(C), B2 and B8), and Country Park, landscaping and associated open space, 
pursuant to outline planning permission 10/00851/EXT.  
 
This is a cross boundary application with North West Leicestershire District Council. 
 
The application site can be split into two distinct forms of development, the employment 
development and country park. 

 
The employment aspect of the development comprises three large distribution warehouses 
totalling 93,109sqm and a small to medium enterprise unit of 929sqm on the site of the 
former colliery totalling approximately 55 hectares. The outline planning permission for the 
site limits floorspace for the large warehouse buildings up to a total of 93,109sq m with an 
additional allowance of 1,862sq m for SME buildings in accordance with the parameters of 
the outline application. The schedule of areas are as follows: 
  

- Unit A: Total Floorspace – 33,259sq.m (358,000sq.ft) 
- Unit B: Total Floorspace – 34,395sq.m (370,225sq.ft)  
- Unit C: Total Floorspace – 25,455sq.m (274,000sq.ft)  
- Total Large Warehouse Floorspace: 93,109sq.m (1,002,225sq.ft) (same as approved 

parameter)  
- SME Unit Floorspace – 929sq.m (10,000sq.ft) (less than the approved parameter – 

allowance of 1,858sq.m)  
 

The eaves height for all three larger warehouse buildings is 15 metres with the ridge height 
at 18 metres in accordance with the outline. 
 
The access to the site will be gained via the approved entrance on Wood Lane and an 
internal estate road which provides access to the individual units. The site will have parking 
for cars and cycles provided in accordance with the 6Cs Design Guide parking standards 
with a total of 769 car parking spaces and 241 cycle parking spaces provided.  

 

Page 7



3 
 

It is proposed to enhance the surrounding farmland (approximately 88 hectares) in the form 
of a Country Park which will be publically accessible for a range of recreational and leisure 
uses. The Country Park also provides an opportunity to improve the biodiversity and 
ecological value that the site has lost during its use as a colliery.  
 
A phasing strategy has been prepared to enable the development to be undertaken in 
stages, enabling a revenue stream to be established with the early phases of the Country 
Park delivery, to ensure the successful delivery of the remainder of the country park and 
employment site.  
 
The Site and Surrounding Area 
 
Nailstone Colliery is a former coal mine, previously owned and managed by the National 
Coal Board. The colliery first began extracting coal in the late 1890s and closed in the 1980s. 
The current site is approximately 143 hectares in size and comprises exposed spoil heaps to 
the north of the site, large areas of hardstanding associated with the previous coal washing 
facility, balancing lagoons to the centre of the site to manage run-off and land to the south of 
the site which is currently used for agriculture. To the west of the site is a belt of trees with 
ancient woodland status. An additional strip of agricultural land exists to the east of the site 
adjacent to Wood Road which forms part of the site area. 
 
The site sits approximately 1km to the north east of the village of Nailstone and 
approximately 1km to west of the village of Bagworth. The northern part of the site sits close 
to the village of Battram, in the district of North West Leicestershire. As such this is a cross-
boundary application and an identical application has been submitted to North West 
Leicestershire District Council. 
 
Relevant Planning History:- 
 
14/00572/CONDIT Variation of condition numbers: Approved  13.01.15 

2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 16, 
17, 21 and 24 of 10/00851/EXT 
to allow phasing of the development 

 
11/00837/CONDIT Removal of condition 23 of planning Approved  12.12.11 
   permission 10/00581/EXT  
 
10/00851/EXT  Extension of time for 06/00980/OUT Approved  15.02.11 
 
06/00980/OUT Redevelopment of the Former  Approved by the Secretary of 

Colliery Site to Distribution Uses State following call-in  
   (Class B8), Small Business Units     06.03.08
   (Classes B1(C), B2 and B8), a  
   Country Park, Landscaping, Open  

Space and the Formation of a New   
Access 

 
 
 
 

Page 8



4 
 

 
© Crown copyright.  All rights reserved Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council LA000018489 Published 2006 

 
Consultations:- 
 
No objection received from:- 
 
Natural England 
Highways Agency 
Coal Authority 
Environmental Health (Pollution) 
Environmental Health (Drainage) 
Leicestershire County Council (Highways) 
Leicestershire County Council (Ecology) 
Leicestershire County Council (Rights of Way) 
Conservation Officer 
Environment Agency 
 
A site notice was displayed, neighbours notified and press notice publicised. One letter of 
representation has been received objecting to the proposal. Summary of comments:- 
 
a) disappointed that there has been no public consultation on the design of the buildings 
b) concerns about the lighting proposed and the External Lighting Plan submitted is not 

clear 
c) disappointed that the requirement to provide a bus service has been removed 
d) If Nailstone residents are to enjoy the Country Park it is essential that there is a good 

path for pedestrians, pushchairs and cyclists from the village 
e) the small business proposed on site is too small, there should be more provision for small 

businesses 
  

Page 9



5 
 

f) the site has been identified as one of the best locations for wind energy in the borough so 
there should be more provision to develop a community renewable energy supply 
company providing benefits on site as well as the local community 

g) tree and shrub planting should include edible species wherever possible so that the 
proportion of hazel should be increased and that other suitable edible varieties added to 
the list. 

 
Development Plan Policies:- 
 
National Policy Guidance 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 
The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 2014 
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Core Strategy 2009 
 
Policy 21: National Forest 
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan 2001 
 
Policy EMP4: Employment Development on Sites Other Than Those Allocated for 
Employment Uses 
Policy NE2: Pollution 
Policy NE10: Local Landscape Improvement Areas 
Policy BE1: Design and Siting of Development 
Policy T5: Highway Design & Vehicle Parking Standards 
Policy T11: Traffic Impact Assessment 
Policy REC4: Proposals for Recreational Facilities 
Policy REC9: Access to the Countryside 
Policy REC12: Nailstone Colliery 
 
Other Documents/Guidance 
 
Employment and Land Premises Study 2013 
 
Appraisal:- 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The principle of development has been established by the grant of the outline planning 
permission on the site and the subsequent variations of conditions to introduce phasing. An 
Environmental Statement was submitted as part of the outline consent. The applicant has 
submitted addendum chapters to the Environmental Statement providing updates where 
necessary. These are considered in detail below. 
 
Phasing 
 
The applicant has developed a phasing strategy linked around the need to complete ecology 
enabling works and earthworks before the commencement of plot development and to 
ensure that the Country Park is delivered in a phased manner in association with the 
construction of the development. 

Page 10



6 
 

Phase 1 - works to the Southern Area of the Country Park 
 
These are to be carried out early in the project programme as part of the preliminary site 
infrastructure and ecology mitigation strategy. 
 
Phase 1A - start on site - to be carried out before completion of ecology enabling works:  

• Preliminary works to creation of Country Park in southern corner of site including 
footpath/bridleway construction and blocks of forestry planting; 

 
Phase 1B - Creation of Great Crested Newt mitigation area. 

• excavation of ponds, constructing hibernacula, protective fencing, planting and 
seeding; 

 
Phase 1C - Site Drainage Infrastructure. 

• excavation of attenuation ponds, earth mounding, reed bed and drainage ditch 
construction to engineer’s details; 

 
Phase 1D - Completion of Southern Country Park. 

• Construction of footpaths, fencing, furniture, planting and seeding to remaining areas 
of Southern Country Park; 

 
Phase 2 - Site Infrastructure and plateau formation - to be commenced after completion of 
newt clearance includes: 

• Plateau formation and site earthworks including cut and fill, capping and slope 
stabilisation works; 

 
Phase 3 – Construction of first building on site 

• Construction of Unit 1 building and associated car parking, service areas and on plot 
landscape works; 

• Woodland planting, car park and footpath construction and associated works to 
northern area of Country Park. To be developed with management board and local 
community to identify priorities in terms of delivering the overall proposals; 

• Completion of site access, highway works and other conditions requiring satisfying 
prior to occupation of first unit. 

 
Phase 4 – Construction of second building on site 

• Construction of Unit 2 building and associated car parking, service areas and on plot 
landscape works; 

• Continue planting and development of footpath network and access in northern and 
southern areas of the Country Park; 

• Development of Country Park car park and visitor centre in conjunction with Country 
Park management board. 

 
Phase 5 – Construction of third building on site 

• Construction of Unit 3 building and associated car parking, service areas and on plot 
landscape works; 

• Completion of development landscape works and site infrastructure to link into 
surrounding Country Park 

• Continued planting and footpath works in Country Park; 
 
Phase 6 – Completion of Country Park 

• Establishment and development of eastern conservation area of country park. 

Page 11



7 
 

Transport 
 
The site will have parking for cars and cycles provided in accordance with the 6Cs Design 
Guide with a total of 769 car parking spaces and 241 cycle parking spaces. Adequate spaces 
will also be provided for HGVs subject to individual operators needs. 
 
The mitigation measures agreed as part of the outline scheme to provide junction 
improvements and a gateway/traffic calming feature into Nailstone are still in place and will 
be provided as part of the scheme. 
 
Ecology 
 
The site has previously been subject to a range of ecological surveys in order to inform the 
original ecological impact assessment submitted in support of the application for outline 
planning permission. The key ecological receptor on site is a large population of great 
crested newts which inhabits a series of former colliery lagoons and nearby field ponds at the 
southern edge of the former colliery. Other notable ecological receptors are a population of 
badgers, bats, birds and a mosaic of existing habitat types including ancient woodland, 
species-rich hedgerows and a small pocket of lichen-rich habitat which has established on 
colliery spoil.  
 
The proposed layout for the site has been designed based on the importance of the existing 
site ecology. An extensive Country Park will be created around the central area of built 
environment, which will allow existing habitats of ecological value to be retained and new 
ecologically valuable habitats to be created (wildflower grassland, native woodland and 
scrub, new native species-rich hedgerows, wetland areas). Mitigation for all potential 
protected and notable species, which will ensure that the favourable conservation status of 
all species is maintained and enhanced throughout the development.  
 
The ecology condition has been discharged from the outline scheme and works have 
commenced on site in accordance with those details. 
 
Noise and Vibration 
 
The addendum confirms that the information set out within the Noise and Vibration Chapter 
and Technical Appendix 6 of the original Environmental Statement remains appropriate, 
subject to submission of a detailed noise assessment as required by condition 9 of outline 
planning permission 10/00851/EXT. Vibration is not expected to be a concern from the 
operational activities within the industrial development site.  
 
From the assessment, based on the proposed development and additional mitigation in 
place, limitations were placed on the number of allowable Heavy Goods Vehicle movements 
to the site on an hourly basis. The limitations were set such that the noise impact of the 
development upon the nearest noise sensitive receptors is limited to negligible in the long 
term. 
 
Air Quality 
 
The scheme remains within the parameters of the Outline Planning Permission, and the 
required remediation, earthworks and construction activities have not significantly changed 
from those identified in the 2006 Environmental Statement. It is concluded that the air quality 
objectives for all pollutants will not be exceeded and there will be no significant air quality 
effects. The scheme is consistent with all national and local policies. The range of mitigation 
measures that will be required is unchanged.  
 

Page 12



8 
 

Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
The addendum confirms that the findings of the 2006 Wardell Armstrong ‘Drainage and 
Flood Risk Assessment’ August 2006, which was submitted as part of the 2006 
Environmental Statement, remain valid.  
 
The site has been re-examined with the latest planning and flood risk guidance and with 
cognizance to the latest scheme proposals for the development site and Country Park area.  
 
Whilst infiltration techniques are not applicable for this scheme, suitable Suds systems are 
proposed. Further discussions with the Environment Agency have confirmed that the 
proposed alternative solution of onsite primary sewage treatment, reed bed tertiary treatment 
and discharge to the water course system would be an acceptable solution to the foul 
drainage for the scheme.  
 
Outline Remediation Strategy 
 
The technical addendum provides an update to a 2006 Wardell Armstrong Outline 
Remediation Strategy in the context of the 2014 reserved matters application. No significant 
site-wide ground contamination was detected during various phases of investigation carried 
out in 2006 or during investigations undertaken before and since. Nevertheless a degree of 
environmental remediation to protect both future site users and ecological receptors is 
recommended. 
 
Given the previous use of the site as a colliery and location of various former coal workings 
within the site the Coal Authority have considered the proposal and have requested a 
condition requiring details of grounds investigations to take place to investigate the geology 
surrounding the adit and to provide appropriate mitigation. 
 
Building Design 
 
The proposed warehouse buildings have been designed to feature barrelled roofs to Units A 
and B. Unit C is screened by existing mounds and landscaping and features a flat roof. 
 
The elevations have been designed to feature a palette of neutral shades with a blue 
horizontal band with white cladding to reduce the impact of the buildings. 
 
The buildings are typical of large warehouse structures however given that they are set back 
within the site and well screened by the existing mounds and proposed planting, will largely 
be screened minimising the impact of the structures. 
 
Country Park 
 
As set out above the delivery of the Country Park is linked to relevant phases of the 
development and will provide a visitor and leisure use to the community and wider population 
of the area. The proposals involve making footways, cycle ways and access for recreation 
throughout the site. Planting is also proposed to National Forest planting specifications. 
 
A Country Park Management Plan has been agreed and provided as part of the previous 
conditions on the outline consent. This sets out the detailed management of the Country 
Park and how it will be implemented and maintained. 

Page 13



9 
 

Other Matters 
 
The applicant has submitted an external lighting plan which has been reviewed by 
Environmental Health (Pollution). External lighting will largely be screened by the mounds 
around the site and by planting. Nevertheless there will be an increase in light pollution from 
the site as a result of the proposal given the proposed nature of the uses of the employment 
site and need for lighting. It is considered that the lighting proposed has been designed to 
avoid significant light spill and as such there would be no detrimental impacts upon the 
surrounding area. 
 
A S106 agreement was completed as part of the outline consent and a subsequent deed of 
variation as part of the variation of condition application to secure the provision of 
infrastructure improvements to highways, public transport and the management of the 
country park.  
 
Conclusion 
 
In conclusion the reserved matters submission is considered to be acceptable and follows on 
closely in respect of the information that has been provided as part of the outline submission 
and subsequent variation of condition application to introduce phasing. In addition, details 
have been provided in respect of the discharge of conditions and requirements imposed as 
part of the outline consent. 
 
Details will continue to be submitted for each phase to ensure that the site is developed 
comprehensively and in accordance with the overall masterplan approved at the outline 
stage. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:- Grant subject to conditions. 
 
Summary of Reasons for Recommendation and Relevant Development Plan Policies : 
 
Having regard to representations received and relevant provisions of the development plan, 
as summarised below, it is considered that subject to compliance with the conditions 
attached to this permission, the proposed development would be generally in accordance 
with the development plan, the National Planning Policy Framework and the positive impacts 
of the regeneration of the site with a mixed-use strategic employment development, together 
with the environmental benefits of the regeneration of the site and social and environmental 
benefits of the creation of a country park would result in a sustainable development. 
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Core Strategy (2009):- Policy 21. 
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan (2001):- Policies EMP4, BE1, NE2, NE5, NE10, T5, T11, 
REC4, REC9 and REC12. 
 
In dealing with the application, the local planning authority have worked with the applicant in 
a positive and proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to 
dealing with the planning application. 
 
Conditions :- 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete 

accordance with submitted application details, as follows:-  
 

1336-13-09-A Site Location Plan 
13-052-P100G Location Plan 

Page 14



10 
 

13-052-P101H Illustrative Masterplan 
13-052-P111D Unit A Elevations 
13-052-P112C Unit A Warehouse Floor and Roof Plan 
13-052-P113A Unit A Ground and First Floor Plans 
13-052-P115C Unit B Elevations 
13-052-P116C Unit B Warehouse Floorplan 
13-052-P117A Unit B Ground and First Floor Plans 
13-052-P119B Unit C Elevations 
13-052-P120B Unit C Warehouse Floorplan 
13-052-P121A Unit C Ground and First Floor Plan 
13-052-P123 Unit SME 
13-052-P130 Gatehouse 
1336-13-13B Country Park Concept Landscape Masterplan 
1336-13-15B Plot Development Landscape Masterplan 
1336-13-21C Overall Concept Landscape Masterplan 
1336-13-23 Hard Landscape Details 1 of 3 
1336-13-24 Hard Landscape Details 2 of 3 
1336-13-25 Hard Landscape Details 3 of 3 
1336-13-26 Soft Landscape Details  
1336-13-27 Tree Retention Removal Plan 
1336-13-28 Tree Retention Removal Sections 
1336-13-29 Tree Protection Fence Detail 
7262-PL-100 External Lighting Layout 
Environmental Statement Addendum – September 2014 
Landscape Design and Access Statement 1336/13/RP02A 
Planning Statement – Iceni Projects 
Design Statement – Stephen George 
Tree Survey – Barry Chinn Associates 
Phasing Strategy – Barry Chinn Associates 
Energy Strategy Report – Kelly Taylor 

 
2 No development shall take place on phases 4 or 5 of the development (as set out on 

the approved phasing strategy Doc Ref No: 1336/13/RP04 Rev A) until ground 
investigation works have been carried out to investigate the overlying geology and the 
nature of the adit where appropriate, and any mitigation measures required as a 
result must be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the development. 

 
3 No development shall take place above base course on phases 3, 4 and 5 until 

representative samples of the types and colours of materials to be used on the 
external elevations of the proposed buildings shall be deposited with and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, and the scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with those approved materials. 

 
Reasons :- 
 
1 For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
2 To ensure that the appropriate remediation takes place in respect of former coal mine 

workings to accord with Paragraphs 120 and 121 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
3 To ensure that the development has a satisfactory external appearance to accord 

with criteria a Policy BE1 of the adopted Hinckley and Bosworth Local Plan. 
 
 

Page 15



11 
 

Notes to Applicant:- 
 
 1 Bats, nesting birds, great crested newts and certain other species are protected by 

law.  If any such species are discovered before or during the works the works must 
be suspended and the local office of Natural England contacted for advice. 

 
 2 This permission does not grant approval under the Building Act 1984 and the Building 

Regulations 2000 (as amended) for which a separate application may be required.  
You are advised to contact the Building Control Section. 

 
 3 As from 6 April 2008 this Authority are charging for the discharge of conditions in 

accordance with revised fee regulations which came into force on that date. 
Application forms to discharge conditions and further information can be found on the 
planning portal web site www.planningportal.gov.uk. 

 
 4 All works within the limits of the Highway with regard to the access shall be carried 

out to the satisfaction of the Southern Area Manager (0116 3052202). 
 
Contact Officer:- Simon Atha  Ext 5919 
  

Page 16



12 
 

Item: 
 

02 

Reference: 
 

14/01270/FUL 

Applicant: 
 

Sun Farming UK Ltd 

Location: 
 

Land South West Of  Lindridge Farm Lindridge Lane Desford 
 

Proposal: 
 

Erection of a 5MW solar farm and associated infrastructure 

 
RECOMMENDATION:- Grant subject to conditions. 
 
Introduction:- 
 
This application is to be considered at Planning Committee in accordance with the Scheme 
of Delegation, as it is an application that has attracted community interest and the Chief 
Planning & Development Officer considers it necessary to be determined by Planning 
Committee. 
 
Application Proposal 
 
This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a 5MW photovoltaic solar 
farm and associated infrastructure including 5 substations, 5 inverter cabinets, access tracks, 
security fencing and other minor works. 
 
Two access points are proposed. Construction traffic would utilise an access from Lindridge 
Lane through the farm. A secondary access is proposed from Merrylees Road for occasional 
maintenance.  
 
The solar farm would be connected by underground cables to the National Grid. All cabling 
for the solar panels, transformers and substations would be connected underground on site. 
 
The solar panels would be set at 18 degrees and would be piled into the ground. The height 
of the solar panels at ground level would be 2.39 metres. From the rows of panels 
underground cables would carry electricity to inverter cabins and sub-stations.  
 
A fence is proposed to surround the site. The style of fencing proposed is deer fencing with 
wooden posts and mesh at a height of 2 metres.  
 
Planning permission is sought for a 25 year period. After this period of time the site would be 
dismantled and returned back to its former agricultural use. 
 
The Site and Surrounding Area 
   
The proposal is located within the countryside 1.2km north east of Newbold Verdon and 
1.7km north west of Desford. The site itself consists of two adjacent agricultural fields and is 
approximately 12.5 hectares in size. The land surrounding the site is agricultural land and the 
nearest residential properties are Lindridge Hall Farm farmhouse approximately 400 metres 
to the south east and Lindridge Farm farmhouse approximately 600 metres to the east. 
 
The site contains a tree within the site and includes mature hedging to the north, east and 
south. The hedges also contain sporadic tree planting. The northern boundary hedge 
includes several 'gaps' in planting. The area to the west is deciduous woodland alongside a 
spring. 

Page 17



13 
 

A public right of way runs adjacent to the south of the site (R88), which runs in an east-west 
direction. Footpath R88 is not affected by the proposal. The construction access will intersect 
a bridleway (R74) and a footpath (R75), which runs in a north-south direction. 
 
Technical Documents submitted with application  
 
Landscape and Visual Assessment 
Transport Statement 
Flood Risk Assessment 
Introductory Environmental Statement 
Tree Survey Schedule 
Habitat Enhancement and Management Plan 
Ecological Appraisal 
Archaeological Assessment 
Archaeological Geophysical Survey 
Heritage Desk-Based Assessment 
 
Relevant Planning History:- 
 
14/00551/SCOPE Screening for Solar Park  Opinion Issued  25.06.14 
        (EIA not required) 
 
14/00133/FUL  Installation of a 250KW   Approved   29.04.14 
   wind turbine with an overall tip  

height of 45m including associated 
 temporary infrastructure  

  

Page 18



14 
 

 

© Crown copyright.  All rights reserved Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council LA000018489 Published 2006 

 
Consultations:- 
 
No objections, subject to conditions, have been received from:- 
 
Leicestershire County Council (Public Rights of Way) 
Leicestershire County Council (Ecology) 
Leicestershire County Council (Drainage) 
Leicestershire County Council (Highways) 
Environmental Health (Drainage) 
Historic England 
Environment Agency 
 
Newbold Verdon Parish Council object to the planning application, due to cumulative impacts 
of other renewable energy developments recently permitted in the area and the visual impact 
of the site. 
  
CPRE have objected to the proposal due to the detrimental impact on the surrounding 
character of the countryside, harmful cumulative impact with adjacent permitted solar farms, 
use of agricultural land creates precedent for others and loss of valuable agricultural land. 
 
Leicestershire County Council (Archaeology) have raised objections, as further 
investigations, through trial trenching, are required to understand the potential for 
archaeological remains on site. 
 
Neighbours notified, site notices were displayed and a press notice published. 

Page 19



15 
 

One letter of objection has been received. Summary of comments:- 
 
a) failure of developers to acknowledge proposed wind turbines nearby, suggest weakness in 
scoping procedures 
b) create a possible 'industrial' looking complex 
c) negative cumulative landscape and visual impact in context of two other solar farms, wind 
turbines and quarrying. 
 
Policy:- 
 
National Policy Guidance 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012  
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 2014  
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Core Strategy (2009) 
 
Spatial Objective 12: Climate Change and Resource 
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan (2001) 
 
Policy NE5: Development in the Countryside 
Policy BE1: Design and Siting of Development 
Policy BE13: Initial Assessment of Sites of Archaeological Interest and Potential  
Policy BE14: Archaeological Remains 
Policy BE15: Preservation of Archaeological Remains in Situ 
Policy BE16: Archaeological Investigation and Recording 
Policy T5: Highway Safety 
 
Other Relevant Policy Guidance 
 
Landscape Character Assessment (2006) 
Renewable Energy Capacity Study (2014) 
 
Appraisal:- 
 
The main considerations in respect of this application are:- 
 

• The Principle of Development  

• The Landscape and Visual Impact  

• Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impacts 

• Ecology  

• Heritage Assets, the Historical Landscape and Archaeology 

• The Impact on Neighbouring Residential Properties  

• Highway Safety and Construction Traffic Management  

• Flood risk 
 
Principle of Development 
 
One of the core planning principles of the NPPF as set out in Paragraph 17 is to support the 
transition to a low carbon future in a changing climate by encouraging the use of renewable 
resources and the development of renewable energy. This is set out further in Paragraph 93 
of the NPPF which states that planning has a key role in supporting the delivery of renewable 
and low carbon energy and associated infrastructure which is central to the economic, social 

Page 20



16 
 

and environmental dimensions of sustainable development. Furthermore Paragraph 98 
states that when determining planning applications, local planning authorities should not 
require applicants for energy development to demonstrate the overall need for renewable or 
low carbon energy and approve the application if its impacts are (or can be made) 
acceptable. 
 
The NPPG provides guidance in regards to specific renewable and low carbon energy 
developments and provides guidance upon key issues to assess when determining an 
application for large scale ground-mounted solar photovoltaic farms. This provides detailed 
guidance on particular factors to consider which includes encouraging effective use of land, 
the quality of agricultural land, the temporary nature of the proposals, visual impact of the 
proposal, potential impacts if the proposal includes arrays which follow the sun, the need and 
impact of security measures, impact upon heritage assets, potential to mitigate landscape 
and visual impacts, energy generating potential, cumulative landscape and visual impact. 
 
Spatial Objective 12 of the Core Strategy on climate change and resource efficiency seeks to 
minimise the impacts of climate change by promoting the prudent use of resources through 
increasing the use of renewable energy technologies. 
 
An agricultural assessment of the site concluded that the land is a mixture of 3a and 3b, the 
grading across the site is patchy and would be difficult to separate. Grade 3 quality 
agricultural land is considered to be of moderate quality and not the best quality (grades 1 - 
2). Therefore the development of a solar farm on this site would not result in a loss of 
valuable agricultural land and is therefore considered acceptable. 
 
It is therefore concluded that the proposal is in accordance with both national and local 
planning policies and guidance and is therefore acceptable in principle.  
 
Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
Policy BE1 (criterion a) of the Local Plan requires development to complement or enhance 
the character of the surrounding area with regard to scale, layout, mass and design. Policy 
NE5 also requires development within the countryside to not have an adverse affect on the 
appearance or character of the landscape and is in keeping with its surroundings and would 
be screened by landscaping. This approach is in line with Paragraph 109 of the NPPF, which 
recognises the importance of the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside and states 
that the planning system should contribute to enhancing the natural and local environment by 
protecting and enhancing valued landscapes. 
 
The site is defined in the Hinckley and Bosworth Landscape Character Assessment as part 
of the Forest Hills Character Area. The key characteristics of this area are gently undulating 
landforms with small plateaus on higher ground. It is defined as a predominantly rural 
landscape with arable and rough set-aside, influenced by industrial/urban features such as 
masts, poles and pylons. The area is strongly influenced by its industrial past, and as a 
changing landscape, it is of lesser sensitivity and therefore more resilient to change. The 
Landscape Character Assessment is an evidence-based document and therefore whilst not 
forming part of the Development Plan, it provides a contextual background in respect of the 
landscape character of the area. 
 
The site does not fall within any national or local protected landscape designations, such as 
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
 
The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) which accompanies the application 
concludes the proposal would change the character of the site itself and the immediate 
surroundings, which includes a public footpath. The public footpath (R88) runs adjacent to 

Page 21



17 
 

the southern boundary and due to its close proximity the view of the landscape will be 
significantly altered, however due to the surrounding planting in the area, this will only be for 
a limited stretch of the public footpath. It is therefore considered that whilst there will be an 
impact to the footpath, this is not deemed significant or detrimental to footpath users. Even in 
the winter months screening is provided by existing vegetation due to the density and 
amount that bounds the site.  
 
In respect of the wider surrounding landscape, the LVIA considered the proposal as having a 
minimal visual impact. The site has a low lying nature compared to its surroundings and is 
surrounded by mature hedgerows and trees. Additionally there are blocks of woodland in the 
surrounding landscape, which result in limited views of the site from the nearby and wider 
area. The LVIA also includes viewpoints taken from several vistas, which show views of the 
site are significantly limited due to existing vegetation. Partial views of the site from the wider 
area may be visible from Desford Cemetery, Hunts Lane; however due to existing mature 
vegetation these view would be limited. Whilst screening is often limited in winter months 
compared to that of the summer months, due to the density and maturity of the planting this 
provides a degree of screening all year round. 
 
Additional screening in the form of planting is proposed to fill in any 'gaps' in existing 
hedgerows, to ensure appropriate mitigation is provided with the application to ensure the 
visual impact upon the wider landscape is minimised. The Tree Officer has viewed the 
species proposed and has not raised any objections to the landscaping scheme. This 
planting would further mitigate the visual impact of the proposal. 
 
CCTV cameras are proposed on site; the details of these in there current submitted form 
(mounted on 2 metre poles along the perimeter of the site) would be urban in their 
characteristics and are not appropriate to the location. Therefore further details and amended 
CCTV proposals have been requested and members will be updated of this through a late 
item. No audible alarms, lighting or warning systems are proposed. 
 
A fence would be erected around the perimeter of the site and would be at a height of 2 
metres. The fence would be a 'deer style' fence and as such would not be visually obtrusive 
in the landscape and is considered acceptable.  
 
It is therefore considered that the proposal will not have a detrimental visual impact to the 
surrounding area, and is in accordance with Policy BE1 (criterion a), NE5 and the guidance 
contained within the NPPF and NPPG. 
 
Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impacts 
 
The NPPG contains guidance upon cumulative landscape impacts and cumulative visual 
impacts and recommends each are considered separately. 
 
Within the immediate area (2.5km radius) there are five wind turbines permitted, of which two 
have been erected. Within the wider area there are two permitted solar farms, one 
approximately 3.5km away from the site (application number 14/00654/FUL - Land West of 
The Poultry Farm, Ratby) and the second over 10km away (application number 
12/00873/FUL - The Stables, Pine Close, Stoke Goulding). Other solar farms applications 
have been submitted within the borough; however these are yet to be determined, these are 
15/00343/FUL - Land at Tower Hayes Farm, Stanton Under Bardon and 14/00660/FUL - Hall 
Farm, Newbold Verdon. 
 
The cumulative landscape impact are the effects of a proposal on the fabric, character and 
quality of the landscape and is concerned with the degree to which a proposed renewable 
energy development will become a significant or defining characteristic of the landscape. The 

Page 22



18 
 

site is within are area of varying topography, and is rural and agricultural in its nature. 
Existing and permitted development of wind turbines have added renewable energy 
developments into the area which do provide some changes to the character of the 
landscape, however this is limited. The proposal in its immediate setting will alter the 
character of the landscape, through the introduction of solar panels and associated 
infrastructure in an open agricultural field. However, due to its positioning within the area, the 
topography and existing landscape screening around the site, it is not considered that the 
proposal, in conjunction with the existing and permitted renewable energy development, 
would be viewed as a significant or defining characteristic of the landscape. 
 
Cumulative visual impacts concern the degree to which proposed renewable energy 
development will become a feature in particular views (or sequences of views), and the 
impact this has upon the people experiencing those views. Cumulative visual impacts may 
arise where two or more of the same type of renewable energy development will be visible 
from the same point, or will be visible shortly after each other along the same journey. 
Hence, it should not be assumed that, just because no other sites will be visible from the 
proposed development site, the proposal will not create any cumulative impacts. Due to the 
proposals location, the topography of the area and existing planting the views of the 
development are limited. Whilst it is acknowledged that other renewable energy 
developments exist and are permitted in the area, it is considered the visibility of this 
development will be limited and therefore it is concluded that the proposal will not result in a 
negative cumulative effect with other existing and permitted renewable energy development 
in the area. The nearest solar farm is 3.5 km away (application number 14/00654/FUL - Land 
West of The Poultry Farm, Ratby). Due to its distance from the proposal and the topography 
of the area, including separating built form and landscape screening it is considered that both 
developments will not be seen in views together or through a sequence of views. These 
would form different views of the landscape and it is considered that this proposal will not 
have a cumulative visual impact to the area. 
 
As such it is considered that the proposal accords with Policy BE1 of the Local Plan (2001) 
and the guidance provided in the NPPG. 
 
Ecology 
 
Paragraph 109 of the NPPF recognises the wider benefits of ecosystems and that the 
planning system should minimise impacts on biodiversity. 
 
The applicant has submitted an ecology report and biodiversity management plan. The 
proposal has been considered by Leicestershire County Council (Ecology) who has raised no 
objections. Subject to conditions, it is not considered that the proposal would have an 
adverse impact upon sites of ecological importance or protected species.  
 
Heritage Assets, the Historical Landscape and Archaeology  
 
Paragraph 19 of the renewable and low carbon energy guidance as set out in the NPPG 
states that the significance of a heritage asset derives not only from its physical presence but 
also from its setting and careful consideration should be given to the impact of solar farms on 
such assets. This is reinforced by Paragraph 131 of the NPPF which states that in 
determining planning applications local planning authorities should take account of the 
positive contribution the conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable 
communities. The NPPG also sets out guidance in respect of solar farms and that they can 
cause harm to the setting of heritage assets. This is additionally supported by saved Policies 
BE5 and BE7 of the Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan. 
 

Page 23



19 
 

No designated or non-designated Heritage Assets are recorded within the proposal site. The 
nearest Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas are over 1km away from the application site 
and, due to existing building development and surrounding topography this proposal will not 
harm the setting of these assets. Therefore the development is in accordance with the 
Paragraph 131 of the NPPF and saved Policies BE5 and BE7 of the Hinckley & Bosworth 
Local Plan. 
 
Paragraph 128 of the NPPF states that where a site on which development is proposed 
includes or has the potential to include heritage assets with archaeological interest, local 
planning authorities should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based 
assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation. Saved Policy BE16 states that the 
Local Planning Authority will seek to enter into a legal agreement or impose conditions 
requiring that satisfactory archaeological investigation and recording be carried out. 
 
An archaeological desk based assessment and geophysical survey has been undertaken for 
the site.  These documents conclude there is the potential for some archaeological remains 
on the site. Leicestershire County Council (Archaeology) have requested a field evaluation 
prior to the determination of the application. Whilst this work has not yet been undertaken it 
has been agreed with the applicant and LCC Archaeology that additional site investigations 
will take place. 
 
The Impact on Neighbouring Residential Properties  
 
Policy BE1 (criterion i) of the Local Plan requires that development does not adversely affect 
the amenity of neighbouring properties. 
 
It is noted that the nearest residential dwellings to the site are the farmhouses of Lindridge 
Hall Farm, Lindridge Farm and Halifax Farm. The existing planting and changes in 
topography will significantly limit the views of the proposal. It is accepted that visually the 
solar farm would be more pronounced in the winter months when there is less vegetation but 
this impact would still be limited. 
 
Residential properties within Newbold Verdon and Desford are over 1km away from the 
application site and due to the distance and the topography of the land, existing woodland 
and mature planting, it is considered the proposal will not be detrimental to visual amenity 
and in many cases will not be visible at all. 
 
As such it is considered that the proposal is in accordance with Policy BE1 (criterion i) and 
the renewable and low carbon energy guidance as set out in the NPPG.  
 
Highway Safety 
 
Policy T5 of the Local Plan states that proposals should not impact upon highway safety or 
the satisfactory functioning of the local highway network.  
 
The applicant has submitted a Transport Statement which details the access to the site 
during construction and decommissioning phases will be from Lindridge Lane and access for 
general maintenance will be from Merrylees Lane. Leicestershire County Council (Highways) 
have raised no objection to the application, subject to conditions relating to access and traffic 
management. 
 
Both access points exist and the proposal includes certain works to upgrade these access 
roads to facilitate the construction traffic and delivery vehicles. The existing access from 
Lindridge Lane is currently used by farm vehicles and has recently been used as an access 
to allow for the erection of a wind turbine east of the site. The access is therefore capable of 

Page 24



20 
 

facilitating the traffic associated with this development. Additionally, the volume of traffic is for 
a short-term period, it is therefore unnecessary and would be detrimental to the rural 
character of Lindridge Lane to request the applicant to reduce planting within the visibility 
splays to a height of 0.6 metres, as suggested by the Highway Authority.  
 
The submitted Transport Statement, identified that a Construction Traffic Management Plan 
would be prepared as a condition of any planning permission. This would ensure the 
appropriate routes and timings of deliveries are made and do not have a detrimental impact 
upon the highway network or highway safety. This is also requested by Leicestershire 
County Council (Highways) and therefore a condition in regard to this is relevant and 
necessary to ensure the application is acceptable. 
 
Subject to the imposition of a condition, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with 
Policy T5 of the Local Plan and would not have a detrimental impact upon highway safety or 
the satisfactory functioning of the local highway network. 
 
Flood Risk 
 
Saved Policy NE14 of the Local Plan states that development proposals should provide 
satisfactory surface water and foul water measures. In addition the NPPF sets out at 
Paragraph 100 that inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided 
by directing development away from areas at highest risk, but where development is 
necessary, making it safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere. The comments and 
concern of the local resident have been carefully considered. 
 
The application has been accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and the scheme 
has been considered by the Environment Agency and Environmental Health (Drainage). The 
Environment Agency has raised no objection to this scheme subject to a condition ensuring 
the details outlined in the FRA are carried out in full. Additionally Environmental Health 
(Drainage) requested the swales identified in the FRA are identified on the site layout, 
therefore an amended plan has been submitted identifying the swales in accordance with the 
FRA. 
 
Therefore subject to a condition relating to the FRA the proposal is not likely to lead to 
surface water flood risk and would be in accordance with Policy NE14 of the Local Plan and 
the NPPF.  
 
Conclusion 
 
The NPPF supports the transition to a low carbon future in a changing climate by 
encouraging the use of renewable resources and the development of renewable energy and 
that local planning authorities should approve the application if its impacts are (or can be 
made) acceptable. The principle of development is therefore considered to be acceptable. 
 
It is considered that the proposal would lead to a minimal landscape and visual impact, 
mitigated against by existing landscape screening, with proposed additions to build up gaps 
in the site boundaries. Additionally it is concluded the proposal will not result in negative 
cumulative landscape and visual effects. The solar farm would not cause significant 
detriment to heritage assets, flood risk and ecology.  
 
It is also considered that the proposed solar farm would have a minimal impact upon 
residential amenity and would not create any highway safety issues. 
 
Therefore, and after considering the issues discussed above it is considered that the 
principle of development would be acceptable and there would be minimal landscape harm. 

Page 25



21 
 

The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with the development plan and the 
overarching intentions of the NPPF. In addition, regard has been had to the renewable and 
low carbon energy guidance as set out in the NPPG as a material consideration. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:- Grant subject to conditions. 
 
Summary of Reasons for Recommendation and Relevant Development Plan Policies : 
 
Having regard to the pattern of existing development in the area, representations received 
and relevant provisions of the development plan, as summarised below according to their 
degree of consistency with the National Planning Policy Framework, it is considered that 
subject to compliance with the conditions attached to this permission, the proposed 
development would be in accordance with the development plan as the principle of 
development is considered acceptable, the proposal would not have significant detrimental 
visual or landscape impact, cumulative visual or landscape impact, would not impact upon 
ecology, flood risk, historic assets, residential amenity or highway safety. 
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Core Strategy (2009):- Policy 21. 
 
Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan (2001):- Policies NE5, NE12, BE1, BE5, BE7, BE16 and T5. 
 
In dealing with the application, the local planning authority have worked with the applicant in 
a positive and proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to 
dealing with the planning application. 
 
Conditions:- 
   
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 
  
 2 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in 

accordance with the submitted applications details as follows: 
 

Dwg No. S.0500_04-B - Land Ownership Plan (received on 30 March 2015) 
Dwg No. S.0500_07-D - Site Layout and Planting Proposals (received on 6 March 
2015) 
Dwg No. S.0500_09-A - Tree Survey & Constraints Plan (received on 30 January 
2015) 
Dwg No. S.0500_17-A - Inverter Cabinet Detail (received on 30 January 2015) 
Dwg No. S.0500_18-A - DNO Substation Detail (received on 30 January 2015) 
Dwg No. S.0500_03-C - Option Plan (received on 30 January 2015) 
Dwg No. S.0500_20-A - Solar Panel Elevations (received on 3 February 2015) 
Dwg No. S.0500_21-A - Deer Fence Detail (received on 30 March 2015) 

  
 3 All cables within the development site and to the point of connection to the National 

Grid shall be set underground. 
  
 4 Written confirmation of the date of the first export of electricity to the National Grid 

from the solar farm hereby approved shall be provided to the local planning authority 
within one month of the date of this taking place. 

  
 5 The planning permission hereby granted is temporary for a period of 25 years from 

the date of the first export of electricity to the National Grid from the solar farm hereby 
approved. After such time the use shall cease and the solar farm and associated 
equipment shall be removed from site in accordance with Condition 6. 

Page 26



22 
 

 6 Not less than 12 months prior to the expiry of this permission a Decommissioning 
Method Statement & Site Restoration Scheme shall be submitted to and in agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. This shall include details of:- 

 
a) the works for the removal of the solar panels, ancillary equipment and structures; 
b) works for the restoration of the site; 
c) the management and timing of any works; 
d) a Traffic Management Plan; 
e) an Environmental Management Plan to include measures to be taking during 

decommissioning to protect wildlife and habitats; 
f) identification of access routes; and 
g) a programme of implementation. 

  
 7 Should the solar farm hereby approved no longer be required for the purposes of 

electricity generation or cease to operate for a continuous period of 6 months, a 
Decommissioning Method Statement & Site Restoration Scheme as per the 
requirements of Condition 6 shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority within 3 months of the end of the 6 months cessation period. The 
decommissioning works shall then be carried out in accordance with the agreed 
Decommissioning Method Statement & Site Restoration Scheme. 

  
 8 The development shall be fully implemented in accordance with the following: - 
 

• Reasonable Avoidance Measures contained within appendix 2 of the Ecological 
Appraisal prepared by Avian Ecology Ltd dated 16 January 2015; 

• Habitat Enhancement and Management Plan prepared by Avian Ecology Ltd 
dated 19 January 2015; and 

• Badger Appendix prepared by Avian Ecology Ltd dated 19 January 2015 
  
 9 Installation of the Solar Panels shall not be undertaken during the bird-nesting season 

(March - July), unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
  
10 The development shall be fully implemented in accordance with the planting schedule 

for landscape proposals identified on Dwg No. S.0500_07-D - Site Layout and 
Planting Proposals dated 6 March 2015. 

  
11 The approved landscaping scheme shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 

approved details in the first available planting season after the commencement of 
development. The landscaping scheme shall be maintained for a period of five years 
from the date of planting. During this period any trees or shrubs which die or are 
damaged, removed, or seriously diseased shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a 
similar size and species to those originally planted at which time shall be specified in 
writing by the local planning authority. 

  
12 Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application, no development shall 

commence until details of the external facing and roofing materials of the DNO 
Substations and Inverter Cabinets are submitted to and agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  

Page 27



23 
 

13 The development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved 
Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) prepared by PFA Consulting Ltd dated January 2014. 
The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to completion and in 
accordance with the timing/phasing arrangements embodied within the FRA, or within 
any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning 
authority. 

  
14 No development shall commence on the site until such time as a construction 

traffic/site traffic management plan, including details of the routing of construction 
traffic, wheel cleansing facilities and vehicle parking and turning facilities, and a 
timetable for their provision, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and timetable. 

               
Reasons:- 
 
 1 To comply with the requirements of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2 For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3 To ensure the permitted development does not have an unacceptable visual impact in 

accordance with policy BE1 of the Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan (2001). 
 
 4 This permission is temporary and as such notification of commencement of the export 

of electricity to the National Grid is required to maintain proper record. 
 
 5 This permission is temporary for a period of 25 years following first export to the 

National Grid. 
 
 6 In the interests of visual amenity and to order to ensure the site is restored to a 

satisfactory appearance following decommission of the solar farm in accordance with 
Policy BE1 (criterion a) of the Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan 2001. 

 
 7 To ensure the development is used for sustainable renewable energy generation in 

accordance with Paragraph 93 of the NPPF. 
 
 8&9 In the interests of biodiversity in accordance with Paragraph 109 of the Hinckley & 

Bosworth Local Plan 2001. 
 
 10 In the interests of providing landscaping to enhance visual amenity and biodiversity in 

accordance with Paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
11 In the interests of ensuring landscaping is in place to enhance visual amenity and 

biodiversity in accordance with Paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
12 To ensure the materials of the proposal are appropriate to its location and does not 

detract from visual amenity of the area in line with saved policy BE1 of the Hinckley & 
Bosworth Local Plan (2001). 

 
13 To ensure sustainable drainage is in place in accordance with Paragraph 100 of the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

Page 28



24 
 

14 In the interests of highway safety in accordance with saved policy T5 of the Hinckley 
& Bosworth Local Plan 2001. 

 
Notes to Applicant:-     
 
 1 Bats, nesting birds, great crested newts and certain other species are protected by 

law.  If any such species are discovered before or during the works the works must be 
suspended and the local office of Natural England contacted for advice. 

 
 2 This permission does not grant approval under the Building Act 1984 and the Building 

Regulations 2000 (as amended) for which a separate application may be required.  
You are advised to contact the Building Control Section.  

 
 3 As from 6 April 2008 this Authority are charging for the discharge of conditions in 

accordance with revised fee regulations which came into force on that date. 
Application forms to discharge conditions and further information can be found on the 
planning portal web site www.planningportal.gov.uk. 

 
 4 All works within the limits of the Highway with regard to the access shall be carried 

out to the satisfaction of the Southern Area Manager (0116 3052202). 
 
 5 Please note the comments provided by Leicestershire County Council (Public Rights 

of Way) officer in regards to the development and its impact upon the nearby public 
rights of way. 

 
Contact Officer:- Helen Wilson  Ext 5691 
 
  

Page 29



25 
 

Item: 
 

03 

Reference: 
 

14/00295/FUL 

Applicant: 
 

Mr Darren Price 

Location: 
 

Land East Of  Heath Road Bagworth 
 

Proposal: 
 

Proposed livestock building with associated landscaping 

 
RECOMMENDATION:-  1. Refuse planning permission 
    2. Authorise enforcement action 
 
Introduction:- 
 
This application is to be considered at Planning Committee in accordance with the Scheme 
of Delegation, as it has been called in at the request of Cllrs O'Shea and Boothby so that 
Members can consider highway safety impacts, agricultural need and the visual impact of the 
size and mass of the building in the countryside. 
 
Application Proposal 
 
This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a new livestock building 
and associated landscaping on a roughly rectangular piece of land to the east of Heath 
Road, Bagworth. The proposed building would be located close to the northern boundary of 
the site and close to the existing field access off Heath Road to the west. The building would 
measure 15 metres in width x 10 metres in depth (150 square metres of floor space) with a 
ridge height of 5.8 metres and eaves height of 3.4 metres. It would have a 2 metres deep 
roof overhang to the front elevation. The building would be constructed of steel frames with 
external walls of low level (1.5 metres high) concrete panels and spaced timber boarding 
above, green steel sheet roof panels. The building would be open to the south elevation but 
with a steel feed barrier and feed trough and two sheeted steel access gates to the west and 
east elevations. The proposals also include landscape planting within a 50 metres long x 5 
metres wide belt to the south of the proposed and existing buildings. 
 
This application is a resubmitted scheme following a number of previously refused or 
withdrawn applications and a dismissed appeal for an agricultural/livestock building on the 
site in 2012 (see planning history below). 
 
Site and Surrounding Area  
 
The application site is located in the countryside to the south west of Bagworth. The land 
holding extends to approximately 4.04 hectares and slopes from north to south. It consists of 
two fields divided by a post and wire fence and laid to grass. There is a hard surfaced (loose 
cinders/ash) area in the north west corner of the land holding enclosed by timber post and 
rail fencing and gates. Within this enclosure there is a lean-to type building constructed of 
timber frames and profiled cladding sheets. This structure has open sides to the east 
elevation. The building measures approximately 11 metres in length, 6 metres in depth and 3 
metres in height. The associated land holding is laid to grass and is bounded by a hedgerow 
of varying height to the west fronting Heath Road and by Heath Woods to the north and east. 
To the south of the site lies a small lake and wetland habitat. 

Page 30



26 
 

Vehicular access is proposed via two existing field gates off Heath Road located along the 
western boundary of the site. The northern most access leads into the enclosure area. This 
has been subject to various highway works, including the setting back of the access gates, 
widening of the access, associated fencing, hard surfacing, additional dropped kerbs and 
removal and reduction in height of the boundary hedgerow. 
 
Technical Documents submitted with application  
 
Design and Access Statement 
Planning Statement 
Details of business turnover and workings 
Extract copies of 77 equine passports 
Letter from agent 
Photomontage images  
 
Relevant Planning History:- 
 
13/00827/FUL  Proposed livestock building with Withdrawn   13.12.13 
   associated landscaping 
 
13/00048/FUL  Proposed Livestock Building with  Withdrawn  12.04.13 
   Associated Landscaping   
 
11/00635/FUL  Proposed Agricultural Building Refused  13.10.11 
        Appeal Dismissed 15.05.12 
 
11/00166/FUL  Agricultural Building for   Withdrawn  19.05.11 
   Livestock and Storage of Hay 
    
10/00770/FUL  Erection of Agricultural Building Refused  05.01.11 
 
10/00650/FUL  Erection of Agricultural Building Withdrawn  15.09.10 
 
10/00448/GDO Erection of Barn for the Purpose  Refused  23.07.10 
   of Storing Hay     
  
10/00308/GDO Erection of an Agricultural   Refused  20.05.10 
   Building  
 
 

 

Page 31



27 
 

 
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council LA00018489 Published 2006 

 
Consultations:- 
 
No objection has been received from:- 
 
Environment Agency 
Environmental Health (Pollution) 
Environmental Health (Land Drainage) 
 
No objection subject to Standing Advice and reference to the previously suggested 
conditions for application 13/00048/FUL has been received from Leicestershire County 
Council (Highways). 
 
One letter of support has been received stating the following:- 
 
a) The building would provide shelter for the horses that are kept on site. Following recent 

problems on Fosse Park, where horses died due to being kept in awful conditions, it is 
important to look after the needs of horses.  

 
One letter of objection has been received raising the following concerns:- 
 
a) field hedgerow has suffered severe damage and has been dumped in the field 
b) no justification provided that the building would be used by animals 
c) gypsy horses do not require this type of building 
d) intrusion into the open countryside 
e) it has taken a long time to get the owner to clear the caravan and rubbish off the site  
f) stop the development on site and clear all the existing buildings.  

Page 32



28 
 

Councillors O'Shea and Boothby object to the application on the following grounds:- 
 
a) scale, design and mass of the building 
b) entrance and exit onto a dangerous road 
c) no evidence of the applicant being a livestock trader or owning any livestock. 
 
No response has been received from Bagworth & Thornton Parish Council. 
 
Development Plan Policies:- 
 
National Policy Guidance 
 
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 2014 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 
 
Local Plan 2006-2026: Core Strategy 
 
Policy 21: National Forest 
 
Hinckley and Bosworth Local Plan 2001 
 
Policy NE5: Development in the Countryside 
Policy NE12: Landscaping Schemes 
Policy BE1: Design and Siting of Development 
Policy T5: Highway Design and Vehicle Parking Standards 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
Design of Farm Buildings (SPG) 
 
Appraisal:- 
 
The main considerations in the determination of this application are whether the issues that 
resulted in the dismissal of the earlier appeal have been overcome. The issues that were 
considered at appeal were:- 
 
a) Principle of Development  
b) Highway Safety 
c) Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Countryside 
d) Enforcement Issues 
e) Other issues 
 
a) Principle of Development 
 
The site is located outside of the settlement boundary of Bagworth as defined in the adopted 
Hinckley & Bosworth Local Plan Proposals Map. The National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) seeks to protect the countryside whilst allowing for sustainable development where 
appropriate. Paragraph 28 of the NPPF supports the development of agricultural business in 
order to promote a strong rural economy. Furthermore, Policy NE5 of the Local Plan 
supports development in the countryside that is important to the local economy and can not 
be provided within or adjacent to existing settlements. 
 
In this case, the planning history of the site includes a number of applications by the same 
applicant for a similar building on the site but proposed to be required for a number of 
different purposes including only the storage of hay and more recently for the breeding and 

Page 33



29 
 

rearing of cattle and cob horses. Previously the applicant had failed to provide satisfactory 
evidence with the applications to justify the erection of a building of the size and scale 
proposed or for the purposes proposed.  
 
The applicant has stated that the building is required to shelter horses that are currently 
grazed across the Borough of Hinckley and Bosworth, Blaby and North West Leicestershire. 
A statement summarising the business operations between the years of 2012 and 2014 has 
been provided to justify the building. This provides an indication of the numbers of horses 
that are within the applicant’s ownership, and categorises them into brood mares, stallions, 
yearling colts, yearling fillies and filly foals and colt foal. The statement provides information 
about the numbers of mares in foal, the numbers of young-stock sold (including details of the 
markets used) and the stallions retained for stud. 
 
The applicant has stated that the building would enable the horses to maintain a healthy 
condition throughout the winter months, would provide shade in the summer and would 
simplify breading processes. The applicant has explained that he breeds and deals in 
horses, keeping the mares and fillies and selling off the colts/geldings. The applicant has 
stated that this is the only field that he owns and that much of the land he rents has been 
sold, or is in the process of being sold for large scale housing development. He has 
explained that his horses would be sheltered in a similar way to how a farmer shelters cattle 
and that the modern agricultural buildings make cleaning, feeding and watering duties far 
simpler. Further, similar to cattle, it is common place for horses of this type to live in herds 
similar to cows. The applicant has also stated that the business is profitable.  
 
In accordance with the NPPF and Policy NE5 of the Local Plan, the siting of an agricultural 
building with countryside is considered acceptable in principle, subject to it being adequately 
justified. Based on the information provided in support of the application, including the site 
inspection, it is considered that the applicant has adequately justified the need for a building.  
 
b) Highway Safety 
 
In dealing with the appeal (ref: APP/K2420/A/11/2166992) against the refusal of planning 
permission for a similar building, the Planning Inspector  considered that increased use of the 
site access would result in an unacceptable highway safety risk. The Inspector was 
concerned about the restricted visibility afforded to the access by roadside vegetation and 
the significant increase in vehicular trips to and from the site as a result of the intensification 
of use of the site. The Inspector considered that the harm to highway safety could not be 
overcome by the imposition of reasonable planning conditions and that the proposal would 
conflict with Policies T5, BE1(c) and BE1 (g) concerning safety. 
 
Since the appeal decision was issued, alterations have been carried out to the access. 
These include the pruning back and reduction in height of the hedgerows either side of the 
access and removal of a section of hedgerow to the south side of the access to increase the 
width of the access to 13 metres at the highway boundary. A timber fence has been erected 
to the edges of the site access. Planning permission has never been applied for to seek to 
regularise these works. As they were carried out within the past four years, the alterations 
and fencing are unlawful and liable to enforcement action, if the council considers it to be 
expedient.  
 
The access gates have been set back by approximately 9 metres from the highway 
boundary, which allow vehicles to exit clear of the highway when accessing the site before 
they open the gate. It should be noted that the use of the site for agricultural purposes, 
including the keeping of livestock, is unrestricted and does not require planning permission. 
Leicestershire County Council (Highways) has stated that prior to the alteration works being 
carried out, visibility in either direction was extremely poor. They state further that, the works 

Page 34



30 
 

have resulted in a significant improvement to visibility with splays of 2.4 metres x 60 metres 
to the north and 2.4 metres x 75 metres to the south. This remains substantially below the 
recommended visibility splay for a 60mph road, which is over 200 metres. Despite this, 
Leicestershire County Council (Highways) considers that the development would not 
generate a significant level of traffic, and given the improvements to visibility, a refusal on 
these grounds would be difficult to substantiate. 
 

In considering the previous appeal, the Inspector was concerned about visibility. He sated 
that “there is nothing before me to indicate that there is a reasonable prospect that a suitable 
visibility splay to the north-west could be achieved given the different land ownership”. The 
response from Leicestershire County Council (Highways) takes account of the Inspector’s 
comments, but still reaches the conclusion that the development would be difficult to resist 
on highway safety grounds. This is on the condition that the hedges to either side are 
maintained to a suitable height so that these don’t restrict visibility. These types of conditions 
are very difficult to enforce and if Members are minded to support the application, this type of 
condition would not be appropriate. 
 

As stated above, the alterations to the access are unlawful and the Borough Council has the 
right, if it chooses, to take action to secure its re-instatement. This includes the removal of 
the fence (approx. 2 metres high), re-instatement of the dropped kerb and the removal of all 
associated material. Leicestershire County Council (Highways) does not support 
enforcement action because the works have provided an improved access. However, as 
stated below, the works that have been carried to the access give the site frontage an urban 
feel that adversely affects the rural character of this part of Heath Road. Enforcement 
matters are considered in more detail below. 
 

The matter of highway safety and visibility has been considered in some detail given the 
County Council’s support for the application which conflicts with the previous Inspector’s 
conclusions. The applicant has not provided any substantive information to explain how 
many vehicle trips would be expected to enter and exit the site, but it is clear that the use 
would be more intensive than the existing use given the additional horses that would be kept 
on the site and the associated need to look after the animals. While it is accepted that the 
works that have been carried out improve visibility, those works are unlawful. Even if the 
council chose to not take action against the works to the access, it would not be possible for 
the council could control the height of the hedges on third party land (further along Heath 
Road), which could impede visibility over time. Nor could it reasonably enforce a condition as 
being recommended by the County Council to restrict the height of planting along Heath 
Road, within the applicant’s control. Traffic travels at speed along this stretch of the road, 
especially as the road slopes and is straight with good forward visibility. The development 
would inevitably result in some intensity of the site access and this is likely to affect the 
safety of road users. While the comments from the County Council are noted, it is not 
considered that circumstances have materially changed to depart from the previous 
Inspector’s views. The application therefore conflicts with Policies T5, BE1 (criteria c and g) 
of the adopted Local Plan. 
 

c) Impact on Character and Appearance of the Countryside 
 
In considering the impact upon the countryside as part of the previous appeal, the Inspector 
found that the proposal would be harmful, contrary to Policy BE1 (criterion a) of the adopted 
Local Plan. The Inspector considered that the proposed building would, by reason of its siting 
and size, erode the openness of this part of the countryside, and so would harm the 
landscape. The Inspector also considered that there was insufficient evidence submitted to 
provide a convincing case that the likely benefits of the proposal to the enterprise and to the 
rural economy would outweigh the harm to the rural landscape.  
  

Page 35



31 
 

The design criteria i - iv inclusive of Policy NE5 are in general accordance with the NPPF and 
can therefore be given weight in the determination of the application. Policy NE5 (criteria i, ii 
and iii) require that development in the countryside does not have an adverse impact on the 
appearance or character of the landscape, is in keeping with the scale and character of 
existing buildings and is effectively screened by landscaping.  
 
Since the appeal decision, the size and height of the proposed building has been reduced 
and further justification has been received in respect of the end use of the site. The proposed 
building would now measure 15 metres in width x 10 metres in depth (150 square metres of 
floor space) with a ridge height of 5.8 metres and eaves height of 3.4 metres. The building 
originally proposed would have measured 17.9 metres in width x 12.2 metres in depth (234 
square metres of floor space) with a ridge height of 5.8 metres. The revised building would 
therefore be smaller in footprint, but the same in terms of height. 
 
As explained above, since the appeal decision, the applicant has removed a significant 
amount of the roadside hedgerows either side of the access, which screened the site from 
public view. The building would therefore be seen much more prominently from the road 
compared with when the 2012 appeal was considered. It is recognised that the woodland 
areas to the north and east still provide some screening. The removal of hedgerow to enable 
the widening of the access, and the significant reduction in its height to the south of the 
access has exposed the northern half of the site to the public highway, where only very 
limited views were previously available. As a result, the proposed building would be highly 
visible from the highway to the west and to the south.  
 
Despite reductions in the size of the building, it would be a large structure of modern 
construction and materials. It is understood that the location of the building has been chosen 
to capitalise on the existing area of hard surfacing and its proximity to the site access and the 
existing building. The proposed location is also the most practical, given that it would be 
located next to other buildings, which is preferable to a more isolated location. 
 
The applicant has stated that a planting belt could be provided within the site to mitigate 
against the impact of the building on the countryside when viewed from the south. No details 
of the type of planting to be implemented have been submitted and there is concern that this 
could appear as an unnatural feature within the landscape. The site is located within the 
National Forest where Policy 21 of the adopted Core Strategy applies. No comments have 
been received from The National Forest Company. However, in providing comments upon an 
earlier application they stated that a narrow planting belt would be unlikely to be sufficient to 
provide effective screening. More substantial planting is unlikely to be possible given the 
potential conflict with visibility along the highway boundary. 
 
Based on the above, while the reductions in the scale of the building would be an 
improvement, this is outweighed by the more prominent views as a result of the removal of 
planting along the border. The building would be easily seen from the road and further afield 
to the south and west. As with the previous application, the development would harm the 
openness of the area and have an adverse impact upon the character of the surrounding 
countryside. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policies NE5 (criteria i, ii and iii) and BE1 
(criteria a) in this respect. 
 
Enforcement Issues 
 
As mentioned above, the works that have taken place to alter site access are substantial and 
have been carried out to seek to overcome highway safety concerns that concerned the 
council and the Planning Inspector in 2012. Before these works took place, the site’s 
frontage had a rural feel, with a high hedge (3 metres – 6 metres high) running alongside the 
site’s entire Heath Road frontage and a narrow entrance gate amongst the hedge, 

Page 36



32 
 

(approximately 1.2 metres high and 3 metres wide) adjacent to the road. The character and 
feel of the site has been fundamentally altered by these works. While the pruning to the 
hedges did not require planning permission, the alterations to the access, including the new 
2m high fencing (vertical boarding), the surfacing of a substantial splayed entrance area with 
a loose material and the dropping of the kerb should not have been carried out without 
planning permission first being obtained. 
 
The changes that have been made have given the new access a more urban feel that would 
be more suited to an access in a built up area, or one that serves a commercial operation. 
The consequence of these works is an erosion of the character of the countryside, contrary 
to Policies NE5 and BE1 of the Local Plan. 
 
If Planning Committee agree to the recommendation to refuse planning permission for the 
livestock building and authorise that enforcement action be taken in respect of the access, 
this will require the land owner to remove the surfacing and fencing and re-instate the land to 
its condition before the works took place. A small farm access would be allowed to be 
retained to allow grazing animals to continue to be cared for on the site. 
 
Other Issues 
 
In response to residents’ concerns about previous enforcement problems on this site, all 
applications are determined on their own merits and previous enforcement issues have no 
bearing on this case. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Based on the additional justification provided, the need for the proposed livestock building 
has been adequately demonstrated and is therefore acceptable in principle. However, the 
previous highway safety concerns have not been fully overcome and despite no objections 
being raised by Leicestershire County Council, the visibility splay remains sub-standard and 
represents a highway safety concern. With regard to the building itself, this would be seen 
prominently and would appear unsightly when viewed from the road and surrounding area. 
This situation is made worse by the substantial removal of planting along the road frontage. 
These impacts could not be satisfactorily mitigated by additional planting. 
 

The alterations to the access and boundary fencing adjacent to the site entrance are 
unlawful. It is considered expedient to take enforcement action to re-instate the land to its 
former condition given that these works have eroded the rural character of the countryside. 
 
It is therefore recommended that planning permission be refused and enforcement action be 
authorised. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: -   
 

1. Refuse planning permission for the following reasons:-. 
 
1 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposed development will intensify the 

use of an existing access that has insufficient visibility in order to leave the site in a safe 
manner. As such the proposal would result in a detrimental harm to highway safety. It is 
therefore considered contrary to policies BE1, T5 and NE5 of the adopted Hinckley and 
Bosworth Local Plan. 

 

2 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, the proposed development would result in 
an a prominent form of development, which would intrude into the open and undeveloped 
countryside, contrary to policy NE5 of the adopted Hinckley and Bosworth Local Plan. 

Page 37



33 
 

2. That enforcement action be authorised to remove all works carried out in forming 
the enlarged access onto Health Road, including the removal of the fence and 
surface material and the re-instatement of the land to its former condition. 

 
Contact Officer:- Eleanor Overton  Ext 5680 
 

Page 38



0 250 500 750 1,000125
Meters­© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Hinckley & Bosworth 

Borough Council LA100018489 Published 2015

Agenda Item 1 - 14/00951/REM

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



0 200 400 600 800100
Meters­© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Hinckley & Bosworth 

Borough Council LA100018489 Published 2015

Agenda Item 2 - 14/01270/FUL

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



0 150 300 450 60075
Meters­© Crown copyright. All rights reserved Hinckley & Bosworth 

Borough Council LA100018489 Published 2015

Agenda Item 3 - 14/00295/FUL

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



National Policy Guidance
National Planning 
Practice 
Guidance 2014

The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) was published 
on 6 March 2014 as a web-based resource. The NPPG has 
cancelled a number of previous planning guidance documents 
including the majority of previous Circulars and Letters to Chief 
Planning Officers. The NPPG was introduced following the 
Review of Government Planning Practice Guidance carried out by 
Lord Taylor with the aim of making the planning system simpler, 
clearer and easier for people to use. The guidance contains 41 
categories from ‘Advertisements’ to ‘Water Supply’.

The NPPG is guidance designed to supplement to the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). It is therefore a material 
consideration in planning decisions.

National Planning 
Policy 
Framework 2012

The NPPF reiterates the statutory requirement that applications 
for planning permission must be determined in accordance with 
the development plan, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. The NPPF is a material consideration in planning 
decisions. 

It also states that the document should be read in conjunction with 
the newly released policy statement on Gypsies and Travellers.

The purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the 
achievement of sustainable development. There are 3 dimensions 
to sustainable development:

 An economic role – contributing to building a strong, 
responsive and competitive economy, by ensuring that 
sufficient land of the right type is available in the right places 
to support growth and innovation

 A social role – supporting strong, vibrant and healthy 
communities by providing the supply of housing required to 
meet the needs of present and future generations, and by 
creating a high quality built development with accessible local 
services;

 An environmental role – contributing to protecting and 
enhancing our natural, built and historic environment.

At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden 
thread running through both plan-making and decision making. 
For decision making this means:

 Approving development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay; and

 Where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant 
policies are out of date, granting permission unless any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against 
the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or specific 
policies in this Framework indicate development should be 
restricted. (Para 14).

Page 45



Local planning authorities should approach decision-taking in a 
positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development. 
The relationship between decision making and plan-making 
should be seamless, translating plans into high quality 
development on the ground. (Para 186). They should seek for 
solutions rather than problems and decision-takers at every level 
should seek to approve applications for sustainable development 
where possible. 

Early engagement in pre-application discussions is encouraged 
where it is offered. Developers should be encouraged to engage 
with the community. 

The planning system is plan-led. Planning law requires that 
applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The Framework is a material 
consideration in planning decisions. (Para 196)

In assessing and determining development proposals, local 
planning authorities should apply the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development (Para 197).

Implementation

The policies in the NPPF apply from the day of publication (27th 
March 2012).

For 12 months from the day of publication, decision makers may 
continue to give full weight to relevant policies adopted since 2004 
even if there is a limited degree of conflict with the Framework.

The Hinckley and Bosworth Local Plan was adopted in February 
2001, as such it is necessary to review all saved local plan 
policies according to their consistency with the framework. Due 
weight must then be given according to their consistency with the 
NPPF. These are appraised within each application late item.

For clarity it should be noted that the following national policy 
guidance documents referred to in the main agenda are 
superseded by the NPPF:

Circular 05/05
Circular 01/06
NPPF (Draft)
All Planning Policy Guidance and Statements

Hinckley and Bosworth Core Strategy 2009
Spatial Objective 
12: Climate 
Change and 
Resource 
Efficiency

To minimise the impacts of climate change by promoting the 
prudent use of resources through sustainable patterns of 
development, investment in green infrastructure, minimising the 
use of resources and energy, increasing reuse and recycling of 
natural resources, increasing the use of renewable energy 
technologies and minimising pollution, including greenhouse gas 

Page 46



emissions.
Policy 21 National Forest: supports: the implementation of the National 

Forest to the north east of the borough; enhancing biodiversity; 
developing a new woodland economy for timber products and 
wood fuel energy; outdoor recreational and sports provision; and 
tourism developments subject to the siting and scale of the 
development being related to its setting within the Forest; 
reflecting the character and appearance of the wider countryside 
and not adversely affecting the existing facilities and working 
landscape of either the Forest or the wider countryside.

Hinckley and Bosworth Local Plan 2001
EMPLOYMENT
Policy EMP4 Employment Development on sites other than those allocated for 

Employment Uses: supports small scale employment use within 
settlement boundary and rural areas subject to not being 
detrimental to residential amenity; not detracting from character 
and appearance of environment and countryside; provision of 
necessary highway infrastructure and no adverse impact upon 
highway network and safety.
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPPF when 
proposal is within settlement boundary but has limited consistency 
in all other cases.

CONSERVATION AND BUILT ENVIRONMENT
Policy BE1 Design and Siting of Development: requires that planning 

permission for development proposals will be granted where they: 
complement or enhance the character of the surrounding area 
with regards to scale, layout, density, materials and architectural 
features; avoid loss of open spaces; has regard to safety; 
incorporates design features which reduce energy consumption, 
encourages recycling and minimises impact on local environment; 
incorporates a high standard of landscaping; meets DDA 
requirements where necessary; ensure adequate highway 
visibility and parking standards and manoeuvring facilities; do not 
adversely affect the amenities of neighbouring properties; and 
would not be prejudicial to the comprehensive development of a 
larger area of land of which the development forms part.  For 
residential proposes development should incorporate urban 
design standards, ensure adequate degree of amenity and 
privacy and provide sufficient amenity space.
Criteria a - i of this policy are consistent with the NPPF and as 
such the policy should be given weight.

Policy BE13 Initial Assessment of Sites of Archaeological Interest and 
Potential: states that any application where triggered, should be 
accompanied by an initial assessment of whether the site is 
known or likely to contain archaeological remains.
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPP but NPPF 
offers more precise guidance.

Policy BE14 Archaeological Field Evaluation of Sites: requires that where 
archaeological remains may exist, there is a need for an 
archaeological field evaluation to be carried out by a 
professionally qualified archaeological organisation or 
archaeologist.
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPP but NPPF 

Page 47



offers more precise guidance.
Policy BE15 Preservation of Archaeological Remains in Situ: seeks to protect 

important archaeological remains through planning conditions 
which require the remains to be left in situ and any damage to the 
remains to be avoided or minimised through appropriate design, 
layout, ground levels, foundations and site work methods.
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPP but NPPF 
offers more precise guidance.

Policy BE16 Archaeological Investigation and Recording: states that the Local 
Planning Authority can impose conditions requiring that 
satisfactory archaeological investigation and recording be carried 
out.
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPPF but NPPF 
others more precise guidance.

THE NATURAL ENVIRONMENT
Policy NE2 Pollution: states that planning permission will not be granted for 

development which would be likely to cause material harm 
through pollution of the air or soil or suffer material harm from 
either existing or potential sources of air and soil pollution.
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPPF.

Policy NE5 Development in the Countryside: states that the countryside will 
be protected for its own sake and that planning permission will be 
granted for built and other forms of development in the 
countryside provided that the development is either:-

a) Important to the local economy and cannot be provided 
within or adjacent to an existing settlement; or

b) For the change of use, reuse or extension of existing 
buildings, particularly those of historic value; or

c) For sport or recreation purposes.

And only where the following criteria are met:-

i) It does not have an adverse effect on the appearance or 
character of the landscape.

ii) It is in keeping with the scale and character of existing 
buildings and the general surroundings.

iii) Where necessary it is effectively screened by landscaping 
or other methods.

iv) The proposed development will not generate traffic likely 
to exceed the capacity of the highway network or impair 
road safety.

This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPPF for rural 
enterprise proposals but has limited consistency in all other 
respects 

Policy NE10 Local Landscape Improvement Areas: identifies sites as 
landscape improvement areas and requires proposals in these 
areas to include comprehensive landscaping proposals.
This policy has limited consistency with the intentions of the 
NPPF.

Policy NE12 Landscaping Schemes: requires proposals for development to 
make provision for further landscaping where appropriate.
This policy is partially consistent with the intentions of the NPPF.

Page 48



TRANSPORTATION
Policy T5 Highway Design and Vehicle Parking Standards: refers to the 

application of appropriate standards for highway design and 
parking provision for new development
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPPF.

Policy T11 Traffic Impact Assessment: requires developers to provide a 
traffic impact assessment for development likely to generate 
significant traffic flows.
This policy is consistent with the intentions of the NPPF but NPPF 
doesn’t reference HGVs

RECREATION AND TOURISM
Policy REC4 Proposals for Recreational Facilities: states that planning 

permission for new recreational facilities will be granted provided 
that:-

a) Any large scale indoor facilities are to be located only in or 
adjoining built up areas;

b) The facility does not have a detrimental effect upon 
adjacent land uses, or upon the amenities of adjacent 
residents;

c) The form, scale and design of the proposal are in keeping 
with the area and do not detract from the character of the 
landscape;

d) Adequate parking and access arrangements are provided, 
and there is capacity in the local road network to 
accommodate the development;

e) Landscaping is provided as an integral part of the 
proposal;
f) Any new development is not detrimental to the rights of 
way network;
g) The proposal does not adversely affect sites of ecological, 
geological or archaeological significance.
This policy has limited consistency with the intentions of the 
NPPF.

Policy REC9 Access to the Countryside: states that proposals for development 
in the countryside should have regard to the following:-

a) Improving access to the countryside, in particular for 
vulnerable groups including disabled people;

b) Promoting walking, cycling and horse riding as safe and 
convenient means of access to the countryside;

c) Safeguarding existing rights of way and ensuring that 
acceptable alternatives are provided where appropriate;

d) Ensuring that new development does not adversely affect 
the safety and convenience of existing off-road routes;

e) Improving, where possible extending, the existing public 
footpath and bridleway network.

This policy has limited consistency with the intentions of the 
NPPF.

Policy REC12 Nailstone Colliery: allocates the 55 hectare site for recreational 
activities, forest planting and landscaping including fishing and 
informal pursuits.  Other forms of development will be resisted.
This policy has limited consistency with the intentions of the 

Page 49



NPPF.

Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents
Design of Farm 
Buildings SPG

Sets out guidance on user requirements, siting, design and 
landscaping in order to achieve a building that meets the practical 
needs it is being put up for whilst ensuring it is also 
sympathetically designed with respect to its surroundings.  The 
guidance covers the development of farm buildings for agricultural 
purposes only.

Other Material Policy Guidance
Landscape Character 
Assessment 2006

An evidence base document that defines areas with 
consistent distinctive characteristics resulting from the 
interaction of geology, landform, soils, vegetation, land use 
and human settlement.  It provides an understanding of the 
landscape, its evolution and future pressures along with 
future management strategies.  It also studies the urban 
character through assessing street patterns, urban form, 
landmark buildings and common building styles and 
materials to define the local vernacular of the principle 
settlements.

Employment Land and 
Premises Study 2013

The report assesses the supply, need and demand for 
employment land and premises in Hinckley and Bosworth.  
The study assesses the economy which informs the amount, 
location and type of employment land and premises required 
to facilitate its development and growth; reviews the current 
portfolio of employment land and premises and 
recommendation on the future allocation of employment 
land and premises.

Renewable Energy 
Capacity Study (2014)

An evidence base document published in 2014 to assess 
the technical and deployable potential for renewable and low 
carbon energy proposals within the Borough up until 2026.

Page 50



1

PLANNING APPEAL PROGRESS REPORT

  SITUATION AS AT: 10.04.15

WR - WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS                  IH - INFORMAL HEARING                          PI - PUBLIC INQUIRY
 

FILE REF
CASE

OFFICER APPLICATION NO TYPE APPELLANT DEVELOPMENT SITUATION DATES

RW 14/01074/FUL
(PINS REF 3013851)

WR Mr Nick Jollands 148 Kirkby Road
Barwell
(Erection of a dwelling (resubmitted
scheme))

Awaiting Start Date

BK 14/00706/FUL
(PINS Ref 3007626)

WR The Crown Estate Beanfields Farm
Derby Lane
Shackerstone
(Relocation of existing field entrance
and formation of an agricultural
access track)

Awaiting Start Date

CA 12/00121/S
(PINS Ref 3005897)

IH E Taylor Skip Hire &
Recycling Ltd

Land adjacent to the west of E
Taylor Skip Hire & Recycling
Ltd
Leicester Road, Hinckley
(Without planning permission the
creation of hard standing and the use
of the same for the unauthorised
parking of non-agricultural vehicles)

Awaiting Start Date

CA 12/00121/S
(PINS Ref 3005893)

IH E Taylor Skip Hire &
Recycling Ltd

Land adjacent to the west of E
Taylor Skip Hire & Recycling
Ltd
(Without planning permission the
change of use of land from
agricultural use to the storage of non-
agricultural waste and equipment)

Awaiting Start Date

15/00003/PP CA 14/00771/FUL
(PINS Ref 3005171)

WR Mr Richard Coley Pear Tree Farm
Watling Street
Burbage
(Extensions and alterations (outline -
access only))

Start Date
Statement of Case
Final Comments

12.03.15
16.04.15
30.04.15

15/00005/PP SA 14/00475/OUT
(PINS 3004910)

PI Mr Terry McGreal Land Off Dorchester Road,
Sherborne Road And Illminster
Close
Burbage
(Residential development (outline -
access only))

Start Date
Statement Of Case (Rule 6)
Public Inquiry (TBA)

19.03.15
30.04.15

15/00004/FTPP SF 14/00938/HOU
(PINS Ref 3003975)

WR Mr N Oxby 149 The Park
Market Bosworth
Nuneaton
(Extensions and alterations to
dwelling)

Start Date
Awaiting Decision

13.03.15

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 8



2

15/00002/PP SA 14/00108/OUT
(PINS Ref 3003301)

PI Cawrey Limited Land South Of
Markfield Road
Ratby
(Residential development
(outline - access only))

Start Date
Statement of Case &
Common Ground
Rule 6 Statement
Proof of Evidence
Public Inquiry (4 days)

23.02.15
13.04.15

09.04.15
25.08.15
22.09.15

15/00001/PP EO 14/00349/OUT
(PINS Ref 3002014)

IH Mr Jim Smith
Watling Street
Hinckley

The Poplars
Watling Street
Hinckley
(Erection of one dwelling and four
mobile homes (outline - access and
layout only))

Start Date
Site Visit
Awaiting Decision

04.02.15
27.04.15

14/00018/HEDGE PP 14/00989/HEDGE
(PINS Ref

APP/HGW/14/384)

WR Messrs Jack & David
Woodward

The Brockey Farm
Kirkby Road
Barwell
(Removal of hedgerow)

Start Date
Awaiting Decision

19.12.14

14/00016/NONDET AT 14/00480/FUL
(PINS Ref 2227799)

PI Westmoreland
Developments Ltd

3 - 5 Hawley Road
Hinckley
(Erection of class A1 retail
development with associated
access, servicing, car parking and
landscaping)

Start Date
Proof of Evidence
Public Inquiry (3 days)

07.11.14
09.06.15

07-09.07.15

Decisions Received
 

Rolling 1 April - 10 April 2015 

Planning Appeal Decisions

No of Appeal
Decisions Allowed Dismissed Split Withdrawn

Officer Decision
Allow       Spt         Dis       

Councillor Decision
Allow       Spt         Dis 

Non Determination
Allow       Spt         Dis

21 7 13 0 1         1              0            9       5              0            4      1              0            0

Enforcement Appeal Decisions

No of Appeal
Decisions Allowed Dismissed Split Withdrawn

2 2

P
age 52



Delegated Applications determined between 23/03/2015 and 10/04/2015
Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Ambion

14/01280/HOU 31/03/2015 Mr Martin Longhurst 103 Hinckley Road Stoke Golding Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 6ED 

Erection of fencing and gates (retrospective)

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00077/FUL 10/04/2015 Mr Michael Taberer 48 Roseway Stoke Golding Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 6HQ 

Proposed dwelling and associated access

REFUSAL OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION

15/00081/HOU 26/03/2015 Mr Ben Collett 33 Main Street Higham On The Hill Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 6AH 

Erection of a single storey rear extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00093/CLUE 31/03/2015 Mrs Sheelagh Rice 8 - 10 Station Road Stoke Golding Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 6EZ

Certificate of existing lawful use for residential accommodation

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL 
EXISTING USE

15/00105/HOU 02/04/2015 Mr Richard Sclater Sibson Mill Farm Cottage Wellsborough Road 
Sheepy Parva Nuneaton Leicestershire CV13 
6LR 

Single storey extension to front

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00149/TPOCA 24/03/2015 Tustain Jones & Co Solicitors 20 Andrew Close Stoke Golding Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 6EL

Removal of Scots Pine and works to Acer

PERMIT CONSERVATION AREA 
TPO WORKS

15/00182/HHGDO 23/03/2015 Mrs T Harvey 46 Sherwood Road Stoke Golding Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 6EE 

Rear extension measuring 5.56 metres in depth; 3.5 metres in height to the ridge; and 2.5 
metres to the eaves (revised design)

GDO PRIOR APPROVAL NOT 
REQUIRED

13 April 2015 Page 1 of 9

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 9



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Barlestone Nailstone And Osbasto

15/00058/FUL 23/03/2015 Mr D Jinks Land Adjacent To Outbuilding 15-17 Newbold 
Road Barlestone Nuneaton Leicestershire 
CV13 0DZ 

Erection of 4 dwellings and associated access

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00064/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr Philip Poole 1 Cunnery Close Barlestone Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 0HH

Erection of a wooden fence.

PLANNING PERMISSION

Barwell

14/01226/FUL 10/04/2015 Generation Wind Turbines Ltd Odd House Farm Cottage Rogues Lane 
Hinckley Leicestershire LE10 3DX

Erection of 1 No. wind turbine (up to 41.5 metres in tip height) with associated 
infrastructure including access track, turbine foundations, crane hardstanding, substation 
and associated underground cabling

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00119/TPO 02/04/2015 Iwood Tree Care Limited 20 Kingsfield Road Barwell Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 8GR

Removal of Horse Chestnut tree

REFUSAL OF TREE 
PRESERVATION ORDER WORKS

15/00265/TPO 09/04/2015 Mr Tim Lucas Saffron Court High Street Barwell 
Leicestershire  

Works to White Willow (T1) and Hornbeam (T2)

APPLICATION WITHDRAWN

13 April 2015 Page 2 of 9

P
age 54



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Burbage Sketchley & Stretton

14/01240/FUL 23/03/2015 Mr & Mrs M Colville Land Rear Of 24A Britannia Road Burbage 
Hinckley Leicestershire LE10 2HF

Erection of one dwelling and formation of a vehicular access (revised scheme)

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00070/FUL 26/03/2015 Mitchells & Butlers PLC Harvester Restaurant Watling Street Burbage 
Hinckley Leicestershire LE10 2JQ 

Erection of a pergola with lighting and replacement fencing with realignment of car parking.

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00072/CLUP 01/04/2015 Mr Ward 4 Welbeck Avenue Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2JH 

Certificate of lawful proposed development for single storey rear extension to dwelling.

CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL 
PROPOSED USE

15/00080/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr R Lees Leeward 14 Freemans Lane Burbage 
Hinckley Leicestershire LE10 2HZ

Erection of first floor extension over existing single storey extension and additional single 
storey extension.

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00096/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr S Jordan The Briary Bullfurlong Lane Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2HQ 

Single storey rear extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00106/CONDIT 02/04/2015 Mr Derek Chandler 6 Bullfurlong Lane Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2HQ

Removal of condition 4 of planning permission 02/00812/FUL to regularise conversion of 
garage to living accomodation (retrospective)

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00118/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr Steve Ward 1 Lychgate Lane Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2DR 

Two storey extension to side and single storey rear extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00135/TPO 10/04/2015 Mr Mark Wood 16 The Stables Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2GS 

Works to Holly hedge

PERMIT TREE PRESERVATION 
ORDER WORKS

13 April 2015 Page 3 of 9

P
age 55



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

15/00362/C 02/04/2015 Leicestershire County Council Sketchley Hill County Primary School 
Sketchley Road Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2DY 

Variation of Condition 1 of planning permission 2010/0475/04 for the retention of mobile 
classroom (Block I) (CC ref: 2015/VOC/0086/LCC)

RECOMMENDATION ONLY

Burbage St Catherines & Lash Hill

14/01072/HOU 02/04/2015 Mr K Taaffe 25 Grove Road Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2AE 

Extensions and alterations to dwelling

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00007/LBC 23/03/2015 Cedar Lawns Associates Cedar Lawns Church Street Burbage Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 2DE 

Listed Building Consent for essential repairs to outbuilding including works to roof and 
supporting internal walls following damage caused by tree limb falling on to roof.

LISTED BUILDING CONSENT

Cadeby CarltonM Bosworth & Sha

15/00145/HOU 02/04/2015 Mr Victor Broadfield The Sidings Church Lane Cadeby Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 0AT 

Proposed porch

PLANNING PERMISSION

Earl Shilton

15/00082/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr Newton 51 Elmdale Road Earl Shilton Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 7HR

Proposed side extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

13 April 2015 Page 4 of 9

P
age 56



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Groby

15/00035/FUL 23/03/2015 Lady Jane Grey Primary School Lady Jane Grey Primary School Wolsey Close 
Groby Leicester Leicestershire LE6 0ZA

Retention of existing mobile classroom.

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00046/HOU 07/04/2015 Mr Paul Hubbert 11 Greys Drive Groby Leicester Leicestershire 
LE6 0YW 

Erection of a front extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00334/NOMAT 02/04/2015 Mr And Mrs Mistry 24 Laundon Way Groby Leicester 
Leicestershire LE6 0YG 

Non-material amendment to planning permission 14/01125/HOU to widen the front sitting 
room/bedroom window

PERMIT NON MATERIAL 
AMENDMENTS

15/00361/C 02/04/2015 Leicestershire County Council Elizabeth Woodville Primary School Glebe 
Road Groby Leicester Leicestershire LE6 0GT 

Variation of condition 1 of planning permisison 2010/0493/04 for the retention of mobile 
classroom (CC ref: 2015/VOC/0085/LCC)

RECOMMENDATION ONLY

Hinckley Castle

15/00134/ADV 10/04/2015 Iceland Foods Ltd Flutters Bingo Rugby Road Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 0AW

Erection of illuminated totem pole sign

ADVERTISEMENT CONSENT

13 April 2015 Page 5 of 9

P
age 57



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Hinckley Clarendon

14/01183/ADV 01/04/2015 Mr Gavin Bradford Paynes Garages Ltd  Watling Street Hinckley 
Leicestershire LE10 3ED

Display of replacement fascia and freestanding totem signs

ADVERTISEMENT CONSENT

15/00042/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr Glenn Connolly 3 Langdale Road Hinckley Leicestershire 
LE10 0NR

Formation of a dropped kerb (retrospective)

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00127/FUL 10/04/2015 Quantamatic 7 Alan Bray Close Hinckley Leicestershire 
LE10 3BP

Extensions to industrial unit

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00133/HOU 02/04/2015 Mr Paul Rose 332 Coventry Road Hinckley Leicestershire 
LE10 0NQ

Two storey and single storey rear extension with alterations to roof and porch to front 
(resubmission)

PLANNING PERMISSION

Hinckley Trinity

15/00154/HOU 02/04/2015 Mr Adrian West 137 Wykin Road Hinckley Leicestershire LE10 
0HX 

Proposed single storey side extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

13 April 2015 Page 6 of 9

P
age 58



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Newbold Verdon With Desford & P

15/00086/TPO 30/03/2015 C/O Agent 26 High Street Desford Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 9JF

Works to Beech tree

PERMIT TREE PRESERVATION 
ORDER WORKS

15/00107/COU 07/04/2015 Mr A Stutterheim 77 Desford Road Newbold Verdon Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 9LG 

Change of use of agricultural land to residential curtilage (retrospective)

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00112/FUL 09/04/2015 Mr Jonathan Reed Meadow View Farm School Brookland Farm 
Kirkby Road Barwell Leicester Leicestershire 
LE9 8FT 

Erection of 3 field shelters and associated hard standing

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00113/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr & Mrs A Campbell The Old Farmhouse Ashby Road Stapleton 
Leicester Leicestershire LE9 8JF

Erection of new garage with studio over and enclosure of swimming pool in new building.

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00115/HOU 23/03/2015 Mr Michael Niezawitowski 37 Manor Crescent Stapleton Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 8JQ 

Proposed single storey conservatory

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00121/FUL 23/03/2015 Mr J Barsby 70 Main Street Newbold Verdon Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 9NP

Shop front alterations and rear extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00125/HHGDO 23/03/2015 Mr Peter Leonard 7 Barbara Avenue Newbold Verdon Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 9NS

Rear extension measuring 3.365 metres in depth; 3.635 metres in height to the ridge; and 
2.7 metres to the eaves

GDO PRIOR APPROVAL NOT 
REQUIRED

15/00131/ADV 23/03/2015 Mr J Barsby 70 Main Street Newbold Verdon Leicester 
Leicestershire LE9 9NP

Display of internally illuminated signage

ADVERTISEMENT CONSENT

13 April 2015 Page 7 of 9

P
age 59



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Ratby Bagworth And Thornton

15/00036/FUL 24/03/2015 Mrs Christine Bourne Plot 5 Garage Site B Charnwood Ratby 
Leicester Leicestershire LE6 0LD 

Erection of a garage

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00094/HOU 07/04/2015 Mr B Wye Woodside Farm Heath Road Bagworth Heath 
Bagworth Coalville Leicestershire LE67 1DD 

Proposed garage and swimming pool with gym on first floor with glazed link to existing 
dwelling

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00095/HOU 01/04/2015 Mr Gregory Taylor 70 Station Road Ratby Leicester 
Leicestershire LE6 0JN 

Proposed single storey rear extension

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00129/CKGDO 24/03/2015 Miss Lorna Wells 7 Pear Tree Business Park Desford Lane 
Ratby Leicester Leicestershire LE6 0LE 

Change of use to pre-school

PRIOR APPROVAL NOT 
REQUIRED

13 April 2015 Page 8 of 9

P
age 60



Ward Reference Decision Date of Decision Applicants Name Address

Twycross Sheepy & Witherley

15/00005/FUL 01/04/2015 Mr Michael Liggins Garage Block Hall Lane Witherley 
Leicestershire  

Erection of a detached garage

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00056/FUL 01/04/2015 Mr Ian Rawson-Mackenzie 10 Hunt Lane Witherley Atherstone 
Leicestershire CV9 3LH 

Conversion and extension of existing garage to provide additional residential 
accommodation (retrospective)

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00087/FUL 08/04/2015 Mr S Chaudry 2 Drayton Lane Fenny Drayton Nuneaton 
Leicestershire CV13 6AZ 

Erection of  One Dwelling

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00104/HOU 01/04/2015 Mr Neil Jones Bridge House 2 Church Lane Sheepy Magna 
Atherstone Leicestershire CV9 3QS

Erection of detached garage with associated access.

PLANNING PERMISSION

15/00130/LBC 01/04/2015 Mr Neil Jones Bridge House 2 Church Lane Sheepy Magna 
Atherstone Leicestershire CV9 3QS

Erection of detached garage with associated access (listed building consent)

LISTED BUILDING CONSENT

15/00148/TPOCA 01/04/2015 Mr David Richardson Brookhill House 10 Main Street Orton On The 
Hill Atherstone Leicestershire CV9 3NN 

Works to Ash tree

PERMIT CONSERVATION AREA 
TPO WORKS

13 April 2015 Page 9 of 9

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Town & Country Planning Act 1990 - applications to be determined
	Agenda Map 1
	Agenda Map 2
	Agenda Map 3
	Policies

	8 Appeals progress
	9 Delegated decisions issued

